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Provide complete coples of two most recent outside audit reports for UNCHCS, UNC Hospitals, UNC Physicians &
Assoclates, Rex, Chatham, and Pardee.
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Description

An annual audit for UNC Health Care System (LUNC HCS} does not exist due to the overlapping
authority between the UNC P&A {with UNC-Chapel Hill) and UNC Health Care. Since FYOS, UNC Health
Care has produced consolidated financial statements in an Annual Report.

The annual audit is performed by the Office of the NC State Auditor. The most recent audit was FY10,
as FY11 is still underway. The FY09 and FY10 audits are attached herein.

UNC Physiclans & Associates consists of the clinical departments of the School of Medicine, and is
thus a part of the University of North Carclina - Chapel Hill. It is managed by the UNC HCS Board of
Directors, and most of UNC P&A's non-physician staff are employed by UNC HCS. UNC-CH's audit
reports for FY0S and FY10 are attached herein.

Rex Healthcare is audited annually by an independent auditing firm, The FY10 and FY11 audits are
attached herein. Because Rex issued bonds through the North Carolina Medical Care Commission,
consolidated financial statements and audit reports are available at emma.msrb.org

Chatham Hospital is audited annually by an independent auditing firm. The FY10 and FY11 audits are
attached herein. Because Chatham issued bonds through the North Carolina Medical Care
Commission, consolidated financial statements and audit reports are available at emma.msrb.org

UNC HCS does not own Pardee; we cannat provide Pardee's financial information.

Provide complete copies of two most recent annual financial statements {not the annual reports posted on your web site)
for UNCHCS, UNC Hospitals, UNC Physicians & Associates, Rex, Chatham, and Pardee showing the balance sheets, cash
flows, income statements, and any other data appearing on the financial statement,
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Description

The Annual Report provided on our website is the most recent annual financial statement for the
system. The income statement, balance sheet, cash flow statement, and notes are provided in that
report, We have provided copies of FY02 and FY10 herein.

The annual audit referenced above contains all financial statements requested.

As a part of the Annual Report, pro-forma financial statements are produced for the annuai report.
The represent UNC P&A's portion of UNC-CH's financial statements. We have included those pro-
forma statements for £Y09 and FY10.

The annual audit referenced above contains all financial statements requested.

The annual audit referenced above contains all financial statements requested.

UNC HCS does not own Pardee: we cannot provide Pardee's financial information.
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AUDITOR'S TRANSMITTAL

The Honorable Beverly E. Perdue, Governor
The General Assembly of North Carolina
Board of Directors, University of North Carolina Health Care Systemn

We have completed a financial statement andit of the University of North Carolina Hospitals
at Chapel Hill for the year ended June 30, 2011, and our audit results are included in this
report.  You will note from the independent auditor’s report that we determined that the
financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects.

The results of our tests disclosed no deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that we consider to be material weaknesses in relation to our audit scope or any instances of
noncompliance or other mattets that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards,

North Caralina General Statutes require the State Auditor to make audit reports available to
the public. Copies of andit reporis issued by the Office of the State Auditor may be obtained
through one of the options listed in the back of this report.

ool # Vot

Beth A. Wood, CPA
State Auditor
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STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

Office of the State Auditor

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONCLUDED)

2 S. Salisbury Streel
20601 Mui Service Contar
Rateigh, NG 27689-0601
Telsphons: (919) 807-T500

Fax: (919) 807.7647 In accordance with Goverrment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
Wm  or. et October 3, 2011 on our consideration of the Hospitals’ internal control over financial

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
University of North Carolina Health Care System
Chapel Hill, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the University of North
Caroline Hospitals at Chapel Hill, which is a part of the University of North Carolina Health
Care System, which is a part of the multi-campus University of North Carolina System, a
component unit of the State of North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Hospitals' management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on cur audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Stendards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obinin reasonable assurance
sbout whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent.  An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurcs in the financial
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the University of North Carolina
Hospitals at Chapel Hill and are not intended to present fairly the financial position of the
University of North Carolina Health Care Systern nor the University of North Carolina
System, and the results of its operations and cash flows in conformity with accounting
principies generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, the financial statcments referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill as
of June 30, 2011, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in Note 16 to the financial statements, the Hospitals implemented Governmentat
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 59, Financial Instriements Omnibus, during the
year ended June 30, 2011,

reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
andit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, is not &
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

odoal # vt

Beth A. Wood, CPA
State Auditor

October 3, 2011



UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA HOSPITALS AT CHAPEL HiLL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis is provided by the University of North Carolina
Hospitals at Chapel Hill (Hospitals) fiscal management team as an overview 1o assist the
reader in interpreting and understanding the accompanying basic financial statements. It
includes comparative financial analysis with discussion of significant changes between fiscal
years 2011 and 2019, as well as pertinent facts, decisions, and conditions, .

Using the Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Hospitals provide information regarding its financial position
and results of operations as of the report date. The Statement of Net Assets; the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets; and the Statement of Cash Flows comprise
the basic financial statements required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). In accordance with the GASB, the financial statements are presented and follow
reporting concepts consistent with those required of a private business enterprise. The
financial statement balances reported are presented in a classified format to aid the reader in
understanding the nature of the financial sistement balance, Notes to the Financial
Statements are an integral part of the information presented and should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements.

The Statement of Net Assets ptovides information relative to the Hospitals' asseis, liabilities,
and net asseis as of the last day of the fiscal year. Assets and liabilitics on this Statement are
categorized as either current or noncurrent. Current assets are those that are available to pay
for expenses in the next fiscal year and arc anticipated to be used to pay for cument liabilities.
Current liabilities are those payable in the next fiscal year. Net assets on this Statement are
categorized as invested in capitel assets {net of related debt), restricied, or unrestricted.
Restricted net assets are categorized as cxpendable for the purposcs noted. Management
eslimates are necessary in some instances 1o determine current or noncurent categorization.
Overall, the Statement of Net Asseis provides information relative to the financial strength of
the Hospitals and its ability to meet current and long-term obligations,

The Statement of R . Exp and Changes in Net Assets provides information
relative to the results of the Hospitals® operations, nonoperating activities, and other activities
affecting net assets, which occurred during the fiscal year. Nornoperating activities include
funding from the State in the form of appropriations, noncapital gifts and grants, as well as
interest expense on financing activitics, gain or loss on investments (met of investment
expenses), gain or loss on affiliate activity and gain or loss realized on the disposition of
capital assets. Other activities include donated capital equipment and Health Care System
assessments, Qverall, the Statement of Revenues, Fxpenses, and Changes in Net Assels
provides information relative to the Hospitals® management of its operations and its ability to
maintain its financial strength,

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {CONTINUED)

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information relative to the Hospitals' sources and uses
of cash for operating activitics, noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing
activities, and investing activities. The Statement provides a reconciliation of cash balance
changes throughout the year and is representative of the activity reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets as adjusted for changes in the beginning and
ending balances of noncash accounts on the Statement of Net Assets.

The Notes fo the Financial Statements provide information relative to the significant
accounting principles applied in the financial statements, authority for and associated risk of
deposits and investments, detailed information on long-term liabilities, detailed information
on accounts Teceivable, accounts payable, revenues and expenses, required information on
pension plans and other post employment benefits, insurance against losses, commitments and
contingencies, accounting changes, and a discussion of adjustments to prior periods and
events subsequent to the Hospitals’ financial statement peried when appropriate. Overall,
these disclosures provide information to better understand details, risk, and uncertainty
associated with the amounts reported and are considered an integral part of the financial
statements.

Comparison of Two-Year Data for 2011 to 2010

Comparative financial data of 2011 to 2010 is summarized in Table 1. Discussion of
comparative data is included in the following section.

Analysis of Overall Financizl Position and Results of Operations

Statement of Net Assets

Assets increased overall by $175 million or 12% from fiscal year 2010 to 2011 due primarily
to the growth in investment value, cash, and capital assets. Depreciable capital assets
continued to increase due to routine capital equipment purchases and multiple capital projects
including the expansion and renovation of the Ambulatory Care Center (ACC) which added
four operating rooms, twelve 23 hour rooms and pre and post operative space, as well as the
completion and opening of the 31,000 square foot Imaging & Spine Center. Both the ACC
and the Imaging & Spine Center were funded by the issuance of revenue bonds during the
fiscal year. Investment income returns fluctuated during the year and finished with a
combined overall return of 15% for the year on cash and equity investments.

Liabilities increased $42 million or 9% compared to & net assets increase of $133 million or
13% from fiscal year 2010. The largest increase in liabilities was in the noncurrent section as
a result of issuing $49 million in revenue bonds for capital projects and described in more
detail in Note 6 within the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Operating income and net assets continued to grow at the Hospitals during fiscal year 2011,
Fiscal year 2011 performance resulted in an operating margin of 9% using the GASB
financial statement format compared to 7% in fiscal year 2010.




MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Total operating revenue grew year-over-year by 10%, showing demand for the Hospitals’ full
amray of services. This growth is attributed to a slight increase in inpatient volwme, in 2
facility that consistently operates at greater than 0% of licensed inpatient capacity, full year
impact of continued Cancer Hospital revenues, as well as an increase in inpatient and
outpatient rates which offsct a lower collection percentage as compared to fiscal year 2010,
The Hospitals again recognized some improvement in revenue due to the settlement of
Medicare and Medicaid Cost Report activities, but many years” audits are still not complete
by Federal or State agencies; however, management continued to maintain reserves for
potential unknowns that may result from the Medicare and Medicaid claims audit programs.
See Note 4 in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more information on estimated third
party settlements.

Tolal operating expenses increased by 7% year-over-year but were actively managed within
budgeted ¢xpectations. Regularly scheduled meetings continue to be held by the Chief
Financial Officer with the Hospitals’ vice presidents and directors to review results by arca
and to identify the corrective measures needed early in order to ensure operations are
managed within budget successfully. The largest categonical dollar increases in expense
occurred in salarics and benefits, medical and surgical supplics, and contracted services, while
medical malpractice costs again represented the largest percentage change. Salaries and
benefits expense increased $41 million or 8% over the prior year and includes market rate
adjustments, staffing to cover volume growth, and the expense of a nondiscretionary incentive
compensation payment that was again made to qualifying employees in October 2011 as a
result of attaining specific clinical quality, patient satisfaction, employee, and financial goals
at an orgunizational level. The increases in medical and surgical supplies and contracied
services are attributed significantly to volume, and to a lesser extent, inflation, Medical
malpractice costs decreased 21% year-over-year. Increases/decreascs in medical malpractice
expense are a function of assessments made of the participants by the Liability Insurance
Trust Fund {the Fund} of the UNC Health Care System. The assessment made by the Fund
and the resulting expense is an estimate of the funds needed to ensure the solvency of the
Fund. Changes in reserves and net assets of the Fund are impacted by multiple components
such as investment return, claims payments and defemse costs as well as
favorablc/unfavorable developments from previous year estimates. The Fund is managed
rigorously by the Hospitals’ Risk Management department to ensure patient safety and
minimize overall exposure. Sec Mote 12 in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more
infonmation on the Fund. Depreciation and amortization expense increased $3 million or 6%
year-over-year and is due 1o the acquisition of routine capital equipment and placing the ACC
and Tmaging & Spine Center projects and the associated equipment into service along with
other renovation projects completed during the year.

Net nonoperating revenues increased $53 million in total year-over-year in spite of an
$8 mitlion, or 19%, decrease in state appropriations. An increase in investment income of
$92 million in the current year compared to $31 million in the prior year was primarily due to
favorable market conditions.

In the other revenues (expenses) section, capital gifts and grants decreased significantly year-
over-year due to the completion of the North Carolina Cancer Hospital during fiscal

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

year 2010 which was funded primarily by a capital grant. The Hospitals, as in prior years,
agreed to fund the UNC Health Care System Enterprise Fund that supports initiatives the
Chief Executive Officer of the University of North Carolina Health Care System deems
appropriatc and are based on recommendations made from the semior leadership team to
further the patient care mission of the UNC Health Care System. These expenses increased
$18 million from the prior year and totaled $81 million for fiscal year 2011. Health Care
System Assessments are described in more detail in Note 14 within the Notes fo the Financial
Statements.

Analysis of Net Asset Balances

At June 30, 2011, net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, totaled
$383 million. This represents the gross value of plant assets of $1,029 million plus bond
issuance costs of $1 million less accumulated depreciation $445 million and related debt of
$202 million.

Restricted expendable net assets totaled $163 million representing amounts subject to
externally imposed restrictions including the Maintenance Reserve Fund, Liability Insurance
Trust Fund, Trust Fund Donations and Minority Interest in Carolina Dialysis, LLC.
Unrestricted net assets increased $131 million year-over-year due to a combination of
increased revenues that exceeded closely managed expenses as well as favorable market
conditions increasing investment returns. These positive results enabled and offset an
increase in Health Care System Assessments.

Discussion of Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Activity

Capital Assets

The Hospitals expended $42 million during the year for capital equipment throughout the
facilities including $6 million on computer software and an additional $36 million on the
construction of buildings, infrastructure and renovations, See Note 5 within the Notes fo the
Financial Statements for more information on capital assets.

At June 30, 2011, outstanding commitments on construction contracts were $29 million.
The annualized average age of plant and equipment is approximately 8 years.

Long-Term Debt Activities

On November 9, 2010, the Hospitals issued $49 miillion in revenue bonds to fund the
expansion of the ACC and the construction of the Imaging & Spine Center. At June 30, 2011,
the Hospitals had outstanding bond indebtedness in the amount of $283 million of which
%10 million is due within the next year. Standard and Poor's and Moody's Ratings Services
classify these bonds as AA- and Aal respectively. The outstanding long-term debt of the
Hospitals is described in Note 6 within the Notes to the Financial Statements.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Discussion of Conditions That May Have a Significant Effect on Net Assets or Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Health policy changes at the federat and state level have been enacted but the ultimate impact
of these policy changes on the finances of the Hospitals is largely wnknown as of the date of
this report. The Hospitals continue to assimilate and assess the known jmpacts, but models to
accurately predict any impact are still being developed industry-wide.

The state of the national and regional economy will continue to pressure revenues and
collections whether or not additional health policy changes are made at the federal and state
level. The Hospitels remains concerned about the rising expense incurred as a result of
carrying out its mission.

The Hospitals receives some state finding through general appropriation to carry out its
mission. This appropriation is not specifically tied to any particular program. Given the
general state of North Carolina’s economy and its budget, the annual appropriation is subject
to available funds as directed by the legislature and may increase or decrease during the year
based on the fiscal strength of the State of North Carolina. The Hospitals reliance on state
appropriaied funding is less than 2% of its amual budget.

The Medicare and Medicaid programs have implemented additional audits to recoup errant
payments to hospitals. These Recovery Audit Contracior (RAC) and Medicaid Iniegrity
Contractor (MIC) audits have been recently instituted and potentially create additional
revenue risk. The Hospitals wes contacted during fiscal year 2011, and repayments were
insignificant. Reserves have been set aside as a contingency toward potential future audits of
prior year results,

The Hospitals’ management realizes that investment risk will be ongoing. Aditional
flexibility with investment alternatives from the North Carolina State Treasurer was granted
in the most recent legislative session. The Hospitals, in consultation with the Board of
Trustees, will seck changes in its investment policy to minimize risk and improve investment
returns. At this time, management is not advocating additional investments over current
levels.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS {CONCLUDED)
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University of Nerth Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill

Statement of Net Assets Exhibit A-1
June 30, 2011 Page I of 2
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) $ 119,165,338
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Nole 2) 9,263,723
Recaivables:
Patient Accounts Recalvable, Net (Note 3) 124,524,800
Accrued Interest Receivable 386,107
Other Accounts Receivable 11,602,834
Due from Primary Governmant 4,389,863
Dua from State of North Carclina Component Linits 16,593,975
Estimatad Third Party Settlements (Note 4) 45,265,208
Inventocries 18,220,188
Prepaid Expense 30,767,414
Total Current Assets 380,178,500
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents {(Note 2) 166,963,987
Investrments (Note 2) 53,788,463
Cash and Investments Designated for Capital Projects (Note 2) 410,015,410
Advanced Daposite with Liability Insuranca Trust Fund (Note 12) 3,319,009
Patisnt Accounts Receivable, Net (Note 3) 10,127,811
Bend Issuance Costs, Net 1,608,530
Deferred Cutflow of Resources (Note 7) 16,821,518
Start-Up Cost, Net 494,732
Investments in Affillales (Note 15) 1,057,342
Capital Assats - Nondepraciable (Note 5) 58,061,579
Capital Assats - Depreciable, Net (Nota 5) 526,329,316
Total Noncurrent Assets 1247585897
Total Assats 1,627,785, 197
LIABILITIES
Current Liabéities:
Accounts Payable 38,408,052
Accrued Salaries and Banefits 41,460,804
Estimated Third Party Settliements (Note 4) 23.230.416
Dua 10 Patients or Third Parties 3,740,876
Duse to Primary Govemment 5,282,
Due to State of North Carolina Component Units 6,578,758
Bond Interest Payable 1,371,263
Funds Held for Others 1,124,885
Long-Term Liabikities - Curment Portion (Nots 6) 14,589,984
Total Current Liabilities 133798812
Noncurrent Llabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities (Note B) 300,684,259
Hedging Derivative Liabllity {Nota 7} 15,821,518
Estimated Third Party Settlements (Note 4) 50,731 232
Total Noncurrent Lisbilities W20
Total Liabilities 501,033,821



University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill

Statement of Net Assets Exhibit A-1
June 30, 2011 Page 2 of 2
NET ASSETS
Irvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 382,881,572
Restricted for Expandable Uses for:
Maintenance Resarve Fund 152,473,432
Liabillty insurance Trust Fund 3,319,009
Trust Fund Donations 273,386
Minority Irterest in Carolina Dialysis, LLC 7,401,599
Unrestricted 580,382,378
Total Net Assets 5 1‘126 731,376

The accompanying notes lo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

University of North Caroling Hospitals at Chapel Hill
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit A-2

REVENUES

Operating Revenues:
Net Patient Service Revenue {Note 9)
Other Operating Revenues

Total Opaerating Revenues

EXPENSES

Operating Expenses:
Saiaries and Benefils
Medical and Stirgical Supp
Contracted Services
Other Supplies and Services
Communications, Utilites, and Travet
Medical Malpractice Costs
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Cperaling Incoma

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State Appropriations

Nancapital Gifts and Grants

Investment Incoma (Net of Investment Expense of $1,003,237.37)
Gain on Investments in Affiliates (Note 15)

interest and Feas on Debt

Loss on Dispesal of Capital Assets

Net Noroperating Revenues
Income Before Other Revenues and Expenses

Capital Gifts
Heslth Care System Assessmants (Note 14)

Increase in Not Assets

NET ASSETS
Net Assets - July 1, 2010, as Restated (Note 17)

Neat Azsets - June 30, 2011

The accompanying notes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this stetement.

1 1,027,785,502
20,137,412

1,047,022 914

538,913,056
173,857,402
100,829,076
55,053,893
21,521,764
3,461,541
55,741,256

— e T e

950,278,008

—————————

57 644 906

33743,133
968,678
90,949,897
624,551

(9,473,027)

{308,814)

116 504,419
214,149,325
54,050
{80,637 615)
133,566,680
993,164,716

§ 1,326,731,376




University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill

Statement of Cash Flows Exhibit A-3
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 Page 1 of 2
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recaived from Patisnts or Third Parties $ 1,012,964,607
Payments fo Employees and Fringe Banafits {530,930,620)
Payments fo Vendors and Suppliers {371,559,779)
Payments for Medical Malpractica (518,881)
Other Recsipls 24,278,688
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 134,232,015
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Appropriations 33,743,133
Health Care System Assessments {80,637,615)
Interest and Fees Paid on Revenue Bonds {372,302
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds {952,000)
Noncapital Gifts and Granis 968,879
Net Cash Used by Noncapital Finencing Activities 47,249,905
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Capital Debt 51,022,818
Principal Paid on Caplital Revenue Bonds (6,663,000)
Principal Paid on Notes Payable (4,062,320
Interest and Foes Paid on Capital Debt {7.310,443)
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (79,069,770}
Issuance Cosis {540,096}
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 5,022
Net Cash Used by Capital Financing and Related Financing Activities {45,647, 789)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income 3,046,764
Invastments In and Loans to Affiliated Enterprises:
Cash Recsipts 2,000,978
Cash Provided by Investing Activities 5,947 742
Net increasa in Cash and Cash Equivalents 47,282,063
Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1, 2010, As Restaled {Nota 17) 362,761 502
Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30, 2011 $ 410,043 565

University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill

Statement of Cash Flows Exhibit A-3
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 Page 2 of 2
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income $ 97,644,906
Adjustments to Reconcils Operaling Incoms to Net Cash Provided
by Cperating Activities:
Depraciation and Amortization Expense 55,741,256
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Patiant Accounts Recsivable (10,610,287)
Other Accounts Recaivable 3,874,140
Estimated Third Party Sattiements (5,151,788)
Inveniories {3,580,908)
Prepaid Expenses (6,154,268)
Advance Deposits with Liabiity insurance Trust Fund 2,942 6
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 4,581,038
Accounts and Other Payables (9,662,448)
Dus to Patients or Thind Parties 1,024,982
Funds Held for Others (83,802)
Compensated Abssnces 3,666,634
Net Cash Pravided by Opereting Activities $ 134,232 015
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 119,185,388
Restricied Cash ard Cash Equivaients 9,263,723
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 166,983,987
Cash Designated for Capital Projects 114,850 487
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - Junae 30, 2011 $ 410|043|555
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Investments in Affiliated L
Current Gain fram Equity Method Adjustments $ 624,551
Change in Fair Value of Invesiments 87,044,617
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets {308,814)
Donated Capital Equipment 54,950

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA HOSPITALS AT CHAPEL HILL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NoTE1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization - The University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill

{the Hospitals) is the omly state-owned teaching hospital in North
Carolina. With a licensed base of 799 beds, this facility serves as an acute
carc teaching hospital for The University of North Carolina at Chapel
Hill. The Hospitals consists of North Carolina Memorial Hospital, North
Carolina Children's Hospital, North Carolina Neurosciences Hospital,
North Caroline Women’s Hospital, and North Carolina Cancer Hospital,
As a state agency, the Hospitals is required to conform to financial
requirements established by various statutory and constitutional
provisions, While the Hospitals is exempt from both federal and State
income taxes, a small portion of its revenue is subject to the umrelated
business income tax.

Financial Reporting Entity - The concept underlying the definition of
the financial reporting entity is that elected officials are accountable to
their constituents for their actions. As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the financial
reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its
component units, An organization other than a primary government
serves as a nucleus for a reporting entity when it issucs separate financial
statements. The Hospitals is a part of the University of North Carolina
(UNC) Health Care System, which is a part of the multi-campus
University of North Carolina System, a component unit of the State of
North Carolina and an integral part of the Statc’s Comprehensive Ammual
Financial Report.

The accompanying financial statements present all funds belonging to the
Hospitals and its component units for which the UNC Health Care System
Board of Directors is responsible. 'While the Board of Govemors of the
University of North Carolina System has ultimate responsibility, the
Board of Directors of the UNC Health Care System has delegated
responsibility for financial accountability of the Hospitals’ funds. The
Hospitals’ component units are blended in the Hospilals® financial
statements. The blended component umits, although legally separate, are,
in substance, part of the Hospitals’ operations and therefore, are reported
as if they were part of the Hospitals.

Blended Comyponent Units - Although legally separate, Health System
Properties, LLC (the LLC) and Carolina Dialysis, LLC (the CDLLC),
component units of the Hospitals, are reported as if they were part of the
Hospitals.

15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The LLC was established to purchase, develop, and/or lease real property.
The LLC is reported as part of the Hospitals because the UNC Health
Care System is the sole member manager and the LLC is governed by the
same Board that directs the Hospitals’ operations. Additienally, the only
properties owned to date by the LLC are for the sole usc and benefit of the
Hospitals.

The Hospitals has a two-third ownership interest in the CDLLC. Renal
Research Institute owns the remaining one-third interest. A Board of
Managers comprised of six members manages the CDLLC, with four
appointed by the Hospitals through the Chief Executive Officer and two
appointed by Renal Rescarch Institute. The CDLLC was formed for the
purposes of owning and operating chronic dialysis programs, thus
improving the quality of care to end-stage renmal discase patients by
providing dialysis services and conducting rescarch in the field of
nephrology in the State of North Carolina. The CDLLC is included as
part of the Hospitals because of the nature and significance of the
relationship of the CDLLC with the Hospitals. Because the CDLLC
provides services almost entirely to the Hospitals® patients, its financial
statements have been blended with those of the Hospitals.

Separate financial statements for the LLC and CDLLC may be obtained
from the Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer, University
of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill, 101 Manning Drive, Med
Wing E - Room 310, Chapel Hill, North Carolina, 27514, or by calling
(919) 966-5112. Other related foundations and similar nonprofit
corporations for which the Hospitals is not financially accountable are not
part of the accompanying financial statements.

Basis of Presentation - The accompanying financial statements are
presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No, 35, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for
Public Colleges and Unmiversities, the full scope of the Hospitals’
activities is considered to be & single business-type activity and
accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial
staternents,

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That
Use Proprietary Fund Act ing, the Hospitals does not apply Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

November 30, 1989, unless the GASB amends its pronouncements to
specifically adopt FASB pronouncements issued after that date,

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Hospitals have
been prepared using the economic resource measurcment focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are
recognized when camed, and expenses are recorded when an obligation
has been incurred, regandless of the timing of the cash flows.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Hospitals receives (or gives)
value without directly giving (or receiving) equal value in exchange
includes State appropriations, Health Care System assessments, ceriain
grants, and donations. Revenues are recognized, net of estimated
uncotlectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met, if probable of collection,

Cash and Cash Equivakents - This classification includes undeposited
receipts, petty cash, security deposits, cash on deposit with private bank
accounts, cash on deposit with fiscal agents, and deposits held by the
State Treasurer in the Short-Term Investment Fund. The Short-Term
Investment Fund maintained by the State Treasurer has the general
chamcteristics of a demand deposit account in that participants may
deposit and withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty.

Investments - This classification represents the participation in an equity
investment fund through the University of North Carolina Hospitals at
Chapel Hill Trust. Investments generally are reported at fair value, as
determined by quoted market prices or estimated amounts determined by
management if quoted market prices are not available. Because of the
inherent uncertainty in the use of estimates, values that are based on
estimates may differ from the values that would have been used had a
ready market existed for the investments. The net increase (decrease) in
the fair value of investments is recognized as a component of investment
income.

Patient Accounts Receivable - The Hospitals’ patient accounts
receivable consists of unbilled (in house patients, inpatients discharged
but not fina! billed, and outpatients not final billed) and bilted amounts.
Payment of these charges comes primarily from Managed Care payers,
Medicare, Medicaid, and, to a lesser extent, the patient, These amounts
are recorded in the financial statements net of charity care, contractual
allowances, and allowances for bad debt to determine the net realizable
value of the accounts reccivable balance. See the section Net Patient
Service Revenue later in the Significant Accounting Policics for a further
discussion of these redugtions,

The reserves recorded for these deductions are used to determine net
patient accounts receivable and are calculated based on the historical
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collection percentage realized for each payer. The collection rates are
updated monthly in order to reflect the most up to date information
available.

The Hospitals has established flexible payment mrangements for patient
balances up to a maximum of 36 months depending on the outstanding
balance due. Amounts due beyond one year under these arrangements are
classified as noncurrent assets.

Other Receivables - In addition to patient accounts receivable, the
Hospitals recognizes other receivables related to its operations. These
items include the sales tax refund due from the North Carolina
Department of Revenue, education loan receivables, amounts due from
affiliates and other state agencies, and billings to outside companies for
ancillary testing, critical care tramsportation, and pharmacy supplies.
Receivables are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts.

Inventories - Inventories consist of medical and surgical supplies,
pbarmacenticals, prosthetics, and other supplies used to provide patient
cate or by service departments within the Hospitals, Inventories are
valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Merchandise for resale
is valued at the lower of cost or market using the retail inventory method.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost at date of acquisition or
fair value at date of donation in the case of gifis. The value of assets
constructed includes all materia! direct and indirect construction costs.
Interest costs incurred are capitalized during the period of construction.

The Hospitals capitalizes assets, including intangible assets, that have a
value or cost of $5,000 or greater at the date of acquisition and an
estimated useful life of more than one year except for internally generated
software which is capitalized when the value or cost is $1,000,000 or
greater. Useful life estimates are assigned based om the American
Hospital Association publication Estimated Useful Lives of Depreciable
Hospital Assets,

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 5 to 25 years for general
infragtructure, 10 to 40 years for buildings, 3 to 20 years for machinery
and equipment, end 3 years for computer software.

Restricted/Designated Assets - Certain resources are reported as
restricted assets because restrictions on asset use change the nature or
normal understanding of the availability of the asset. Resources that are
not available for current operations and are reported as restricted include
resources restricted or designated for the acquisition or construction of
capital assets, funds equal to 7.5% of gross patient revenue a3 limited by
applicable revenue bond covenants, and resources designated for liability
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insurance claims. Current restricted resources include certain trust funds
testricted because external parties or statute himits their use, resources
legally segregated for the payment of principal and interest as required by
debt covenants, funds held for workers compensation, and unexpended
capital funds.

Noncurrent Long-Term Liabilities - Noncurrent long-term liabilities
include principal amounts of bonds payable, arbitrage rebate payable, and
compensated absences that will not be paid within the next fiscal year,

Bonds payable are reported net of unamortized premiums or discounts
and deferred losses on refunds. The Hospitals amortizes bond
premiums/discounts over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. The deferred losses on refunds are amortized over the life of the
new debt using the straight-line method. Issuance costs are also
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-linc method.

. Compensated Absences - The Hospitals’ policy is to record the cost of
annual leave when eamed. Employees earn annual leave at varying rates
depending upon years of service and the leave plan in which they
participate.

Traditional Plan - The policy provides for a maxinmtn accumulation of
unused annual leave of 30 days that can be carried forward beyond the
pay period that includes December 31 or for which an employee can be
peid upon termination of employment. Also, any accumulated annual
leave in excess of 30 days, during the pay period that includes
December 31, is converted 1o sick leave. Employecs cam holiday leave at
the rate of 11 or 12 days per year with an unlimited accumulation. The
Hospitals’ policy requires that employees use heliday hours in excess of
40 prior to using earncd annual leave. At termination, employees are paid
for any accumulated holiday leave. Employees eam sick leave at the rate
of one day per month with an unlimited accunmlation.

Paid Time Off (FTO) Plan - The PTO program combines the various
leave types that employees may earn into one earning rate that varies
depending upon years of service. This program is mandatory for all new
employees. The policy provides for a maximum accumulation of
280 hours of unused PTO at the last day of the last pay period of the
calendar year that includes December 31. At that time, the excess
accumulation aver 280 hours is converted to long-term sick leave, which
is treated similar to sick leave in the Traditional Plan. Upon termination
of employment, employees are paid for their current balance in PTO
based upon their years of service. Once an employee has more than five
years of service, the entire accumulated balance is paid up to 280 hours.
The PTO program has a semi-annual sell back feature with payouts in
June and December. This sell back feature allows employees to sell back
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from eight to 120 hours of their PTO balance if they have a balance of at
least 140 hours at the time of sell back. There is a 10% forfeiture of the
cash value to comply with IRS regulations regarding taxability.

Liability Calculation - The liability for accumulated annual leave,
holiday leave, and PTO lcave for each employee at June 30 equals the
teave carried forward at the previous December 31 plus the leave eamed,
less the leave taken between January 1 and June 30. The lability is equal
to the accumulated hours multiplied by the employee’s current hourly rate
plus benefits for social security and state retirement.

When classifying compensated absences into current and noncurrent,
leave is considered taken using & last-in, first-out method.

There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave because the
Hospitals has no obligetion to pay sick leave upon termination or
retirement. However, additional service credit for retirement pension
benefits is given for accumulated sick leave upon retirement.

Net Assets - The Hospitale® net assets are classified as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This represents the
Hospitals’ total investment in capital assets, net of outstanding debt
obligations related to those capilal assets. To the extent debt has been
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not
included as a component of invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted Net Assets - Expendable - Expendable restricted net assets
include resources for which the Hospitels is iegally or contractually
obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external
partics.

Unrestricted Net Assets - Unrestricted net assets include resources
derived from patient care and ancillary services, unrestricted gifts, and
investment income,

Restricted and unrestricted resources are tracked using a find accounting
system and are spent in accordance with established fund authoritics.
Fund authorities provide rules for the fund activity and arc separately
established for restricted and unrestricted activities. When both restricted
and unrestricted funds are available for expenditure, the decision for
funding is transactional based within the departmental management
system in place at the Hospitals. For projects funded by tax-exempt debt
proceeds and other sources, the debt proceeds are always used first,

Revenue and Expensc Recognition - The Hospitals classifies its
revenues and expenses as operating or nonoperating in the accompanying
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Opemating
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revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in comnection with the Hospitals’
principal ongoing operations, Operating revenues include activities that
have characteristics of exchange transactions, such as charges for
inpatient and outpatient services as well as external customers who
purchase medical services. Operating ¢xpenses are all expense
transactions incurred other than those related to capital and noncapital
financing or investing activities as defined by GASB Statement No. 9,
Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds
and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.

Nonoperating revenues inchude activities that have the characteristics of
nonexchenge transactions. Revenues from nonexchange transactions and
State appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to the Hospitals, as
well as investment income and gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets,
are considered nonoperating since these are cither investing, capital, or
noncapital financing activities. Health Care System assessments are
presented separately after nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Net Patient Service Revenue - Patient service revenue is recorded at the
Hospitals® established rates and includes all charges for inpatient accounts
discharged after June 30, 2010, (less amounts previously recorded at
June 30, 2019, for in house patients) and all charges on in house accounts
and all charges for outpatient accounts registered afler June 30, 2010,
The difference between cstablished rates and the estimated amount
collectible is recognized as revenuc deductions on an accrual basis and
deducted from gross patient service revenue to report service revenue at
net realizable value. Revenue deductions consist of charges for charity
care, contractual allowances, and bad debt.

Charity care provided represents health care services that were provided
free of charge to individuals who meet the criteria of the Hospitals’
charity care policy. Chearity care provided is not considered to be revenue
10 the Hospitals and is deducted in determining gross patient service
revenue.

Differences between the amounts paid for services under third party
reimbursement programs and established rates are accounted for as
contractual adjustments.

Net patient service revenue also includes cstimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third party payers.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period
the related services are rendered and adjusted in firture periods as final
setilements are determined.
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Q. Moedica)l Malpractice Cost - Medical malpractice costs represent the

actuarially determined contribution to the Liability Insurance Trust Fund.
See Note 12 for further discussion of the Liability Insurance Trust Fund.

Donated Services - No amounts have been included for donated services
since no objective basis is available to measure the vahe of such services.
However, a substantial sumber of volunteers donated significant amounts
of their time to the Hospitals’ operations.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A, Deposits - Pursuant to North Caroling General Statute 116-37.2, the

Hospitals is required to deposit its funds as defined in this statute,
including moneys received from fees and other payments for services
rendered in its hospitals and/or clinical operations, gifis, grants, and
moneys received from or for the operation of any of the Hospitals® self-
supporting auxiliary enterprises, with the State Treasurer, The Hospitals
may voluntarily deposit special funds, revenue bond proceeds, and debt
service funds. Special funds consist of moneys for agency funds held
directly by the Hospitals. Bond proceeds and debt service funds are
mvested in accordance with bond resolutions. These funds are cumently
on deposit with the State Treasurer and therefore, available on demand to
comply with applicable bond covenants,

At June 30, 2011, the amount shown on the Statement of Net Assels as
cash and cash equivalents includes $390,554,926 which represents the
Hospitals' equity position in the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment
Fund. The Short-Term Investment Fund (a portfolio within the State
Treasurer’s Investment Pool, an extemnal investment pool that is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and does not
have a credit rating) had a weighted average maturity of 1.9 years as of
June 30, 2011. Assets and shares of the Short-Term Investment Fund are
valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Deposit and
investment risks associated with the State Treasurer's Investment Pool
{which includes the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund) are
included in the State of North Camlina's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. An electronic version of this report is avsilable by
accessing the North Carolina Office of the State Controller’s Internet
home page httpy//www.oscnc.gov/ and clicking on “Proceed directly to
OS8C's index page,” then “Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s
Financial Reporting Section at (919) 981-5454.

Cash on hand at Jone 30, 2011 was $31,180. The carrying amount of the
Hospitals” deposits not with the State Treasurer was $19,457,459 and the
bank balance was $20,146,485. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the Hospitals’ deposits may not be returned to it.
Pursuant to G.S. 116-36.1, funds received for health care services not
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deposited with the State Treasurer shall be fully secured in the manner as
prescribed by the State Treasurer for the security of public deposits. The
Hospitals does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2011, $18,501,959 of the Hospitals’ bank balance was uninsured
and uncollateralized.

Investments - Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 116-37(¢), all
receipts, except for General Fund appropriations, may be invested
by the State Treasurer on behalf of the Hospitals as allowed in
G.S. 147-69.2(b3).

University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill Investment
Fund with The Treasurer of the State of North Carolina - At
June 30, 2011, the amount shown on the Statement of Net Assets which
represents funds deposited with and invested by the State Treasurer is
$349,153,406. The Statc Treasurer contracted with an external party
(Trustee) to create the University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel
Hill Trust (Frust). The Hospitals is the only depositor in the Trust;
however, the Trust is a participant of a commingled equity investment
fund. The Trustee manages the assets, primarily in equity and equity-
based securities in accordance with General Statutes. The Trustee
maintains custody of the underlying securities in the name of the Trust,
services the securities, and maintains all related accounting records. The
investments are valued at fair market value. Deposit and investment risks
associated with the Trust are included in the State of North Carolina’s
Comprehensive Annnal Fi ial Report. An electronic version of this
report is available by accessing the North Carolina Office of the State
Controller’s Internet home page hitp://www.osc.nc gov/ and clicking on
“Proceed directly to OSC’s index page,” then “Reports,” or by calling the
State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 981-5454,
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C. Reconciliation of Deposits and Investments - A reconciliation of

deposits and investments for the Hospitals as of June 30, 2011 is as
follows:

Cash on Hmd H 31,180
Camying Amount of Depouiés with Privaie Finarcinl Instiutiom 19,4574%9
Deposity in the Short-Term Imestmant Rnd 390,554,926
Taveriments with the Stale Trosazer — 1%.15%406
Tout Deposie amd Irwesiments 5 790,196.971
T ——Cr—

Deposits
Cureal:

Cash nnd Cash Equivalenty H 119,165 388

Reatricied Cash and Cash Equivalonis 9,263,723
Norcurrent:

Reatricied Cash and Cash Equivalents 166,963,987

Cash Designaiod for Capitd Projects 114,650,467
Tout Doprs L
Noncyrront Investrmonis:

investmerts 43,788463

Invommeras Designaied for Capilal Prgjecis 295,364,541
Tolal Irvestmenty 349,153 406
Totl Depenite atd Hwesnetis 5 79,136,371

S ——

PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

A. Current - Net patient accounts receivable consisted of amounts due from

patients and third partics at estimated realizable value. Included in gross
receivables ar¢ amounts reccivable at established billing rates less
payments received through June 30, 2011. Allowances for uncollectible
accounts and contractual adjustments are estimated using historical
collection statistics. The components of current net patient accounts
receivable reflected in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets are as
follows at June 30, 2011:

Amount
In House Paticmts L 40,892,507
Discharged (Not Final Billed) Patients £5,040,633
Totnl Unbitled 105,933,140
Discharged (Billed) Patienta 270,587,611
Payment Armngements 3E3,203
Charity Care Provided (36,679, 785)
Current Gross 320,424,169
Allowance for Bad Drebis (25,397,546}
Contraciual Allowances — {170,301 823}
Tatal Aflowances 194,859,
Cusrent - Net 3 124324800
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NOTE4

B. Noncurrent - Net patient accounts receivable consisted of $10,127,811
(net of $9,398,842 estimated uncollectible) and represents the value of
patient payment arrangements that are initiated at the request of the
patient. These payment arrangements are based on signed contractual
agreements for specific monthly amounts that extend beyond one year but
are capped at three years,

ESTIMATED THIRD PARTY SETTLEMENTS

The Hospitals renders care to patients covered by the Medicare, Medicaid, and
Tricare/Champus programs.  Inpatient acute care services rendered to
Medicare patients arc paid at prospectively determined rates per discharge.
Medicare outpatient services are reimbursed at prospectively determined rates.
Additionally, the Hospitals receives interim pass-through payments from
Medicare for costs such as organs, graduate medical education, bad debts, ctc.,
that are ultimately settled through the annual Medicare cost report. On an
interim basis, Medicaid inpatient services are reimbursed on a prospectively
determined rate per discharge and Medicaid outpatient services are reimbursed
on an interim basis at an agreed upon rate. Ultimately, most of Medicaid
inpatient and outpatient services are scttled at allowable cost through the filing
of an annual cost report. In addition to Tricare/Champus payments for services
on an interim basis, the Tricare/Champus program reimburses the Hospitals for
a portion of capital and direct medical education costs based on the Medicare
cost report.

The Hospitals has calculated the estimated third party settlements for the
outstanding Medicare, Medicaid, and Tricare/Champus cost reports during the
fiscal year ended 2011, Tt is cstimated that the Hospitals owes Medicare
$23.230,416 within the next twelve months and that $25,957,083 and
$24,774,149 are owed 1o Medicare and Medicaid respectively on a noncurrent
basis. Medicaid and Tricare/Champus currently owe the Hospitals
341,265,208 and $4,000,000 respectively. Included in the estimated liability
amounts above, management reserved $67,827,251 for all outstanding
Medicare and Medicaid cost reports.  The reserve for Medicare is calculated
based on at-risk items for all outstanding Medicare cost reports while the
reserve for Medicaid equals a percentage of allowable Medicaid costs deemed
appropriate by management. An eslimate is made for the current year’s
Medicare, Tricare/Champus, and Medicaid scitlement by using the most
current available statistics, costs, settlement data, and charges. The Hospitals
also included in its estimated liability for both Medicare and Medicaid a
reserve for the claims audit programs, The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services audit recovery programs are to identify improper underpayments or
overpayments made to health care providers,

Once a cost report is filed, it is subject o an initial tentative settlement and a
subsequent audit. Each report is audited by the programs for compliance with
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the applicable regulations established for the Medicaid, Medicare, and
Tricare/Champus programs. Each cost report can also be re-opened or
appealed for issues that the Hospitals or the Medicare or Medicaid programs
feel are warranted. There are several such requests cumently under
consideration, as well as audits that are incomplete at this time. Any of the
above can result in a change to the reimbursement requiring a refund from the
pregram or payment to the program.

CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of changes in the capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2011 is
presented as follows:

Balwos: Balance
July 1, 2010 ocrons Decrases. Auma 30, 2011
Capitsl Amots, Nondepercisble:
Land and Parmanant Fassments 3 SLIT7ED 8 o ¥ a 41,3135
‘Comstruciion in Progross 31,790,620 I5ATLTIY IR 16,680,720
Total Caplinl Asasts, Nondeprociable 73,]5-!10 I5ATLIZY ﬁ)m" &Nlé?’
Capital Amets, Depraciabie:
Buikdngs 90,566,754 50,578,614 S61,445.198
Machinery and Fapipmens 01542 35,§76,761 12,204,780 365,587,909
Generl Infrasiructurn 5,150,281 18,639 5,201,920
Computer Soltware M!W‘ 5561 165 416,957 34728217
Totnl Capital Assecs, Depracisble l!lET‘W‘l 91179 13,021,737 011%999
Buiklings 130.389,536 23 393,664 160,743,194
Machinery and Equipmers 230,688,050 11,761,509 11,996,209 254,450,795
Genersl Indmatruciore FRTEY ] 192558 4,301,642
Cotiputes Softuace: 20,411,068 5388112 793,308 24.99,009
Tosl Accummdsied Deprecission 401, l)liﬂ'! 35,733 503 1,795,617 ﬁ'l”m
Total Capltal Assats, Deprociable, Nat m,gg,m 17299676 2351 515&216
Cuploll Amiti, Not i Ema ; Eﬂlﬁ ! s_olm'm 5 SM
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A, Changes in Long-Term Liabilities - A summary of changes in the long-
term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2011 is presented as follows:

Balmwce: Pualence. Cwrvent
by 2010 Addisiom Radustives e 30, 2011 Partion
Revama: Homde Pryshls $ 0 ISAN0000 6 AETSHN0 § 7AI5008 8 JOGA00000 & 5,700,000
Add Premisn 579,121 LR 2515 261
Dok fored Chwe i Reuing —em T
ol M s 1150 P 300,000
Novoa Payib 2708204 L7458 4062320 130447 1300447
Abiurgs Rsbae Prysble: 2482 2000 15002 15,
Cocspomatyd Absences 7,145,906 M5 41,004 545 081340 1,569,531
Total Long-Torm Lishilitios 3 M m 1 .ﬂw 1 le ] l!&
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B. Revenue Bonds Payable - The Hospitals was indebted for revenue bonds
payable for the purposes shown in the following table:

(™) Matarity Aot Puid Thwcugh ‘Ouistanding
Prposs Series Ramges D of I o 30,2011 Jun30, 2013

Rex Acquisicion sad Hospital Resreatiins: WoLA 020%*
20018 0.21%* @ismal 8 116000000 § D00 $ S200M0

Refund Poecics of 1998 Kevenue Bands WA 342%™
20028 4IRS Q020 15000 1,960,000 055,000
Relind Portics of | 9%5 Revemn Bosds W05A  100% 500%  D2OLZ0LS 30,340,000 15,355,000 15,105 000
Refnd 1999 Revenn Bowds 0094 35 DL 429000 4,383,000 9,705,000
Gremeral Revenna Bonds 2104 100%i0A00% 0104 5588,000 5585000
P T ) 43,190,000 41,200000
Toral Revemme Bosds Paysble (principal oaty) §_NTa00m & 15W0000 296,030,000
Less: Unamontizod Lowe on Refmdveg. (13,633,567
Pl Lttt Presmirs SoH 461
Toul Hevemms Ronds Paysbls 281056354

“For varishie naie Aok, imieront raies in offoct ot haae 30, 2011 we dows-
4ot viarihle rabh deby wilh laencs rase socaps, the symthetic fixad raes in affecn me June 340, 2011 are shows.

C. Demand Bonds - Included in bonds payable are several variable rate
demand bond issues. Demand bonds are securities that contain a “put™
feature that ailows bondholders to demand payment before the maturity of
the debt upon proper notice to the Hospitals® Remarketing Agents.

With regards to the following demand bonds, the Hospitals has entered
into take out agreements, which would convert the demand bonds not
successfully remarketed into another form of long-term debt, with the
exception of Series 2009A Revenue Refunding bonds, for which the
Hospitals acts as its own liquidity facility.

University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill Revenue Bonds
- Series 2001A and Series 2001B: On January 31, 2001, the Hospitals
issued two series of tax-cxempt variable ratc demand bonds in the amount
of $55,000,000 (200iA) and $55,000,000 (2001B) that have a final
maturity date of February 15, 2031, The bonds are subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption that began on February 15, 2002, A portion of
the proceeds was used to reimburse the Hospitals for $75,000,000 spent
allowing the UNC Health Care System to acquire controlling interest in
Rex Heslthcare, Inc. The remaining proceeds were used for the
renovation of space vacated afier the opening of the North Carolina
‘Women’s Hospital, North Carolina Children’s Hospital, and associated
support services. While initially bearing interest in a daily mode, the
mode on these bonds may change to a weckly rate, a unit pricing rate, a
tetim rate, or a fixed rate.
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While in daily mode, the bonds are subject to purchase on any business
day upon demand by telephonic notice of tender to the Remarketing
Agent on the purchase date and delivery to the bond Tender Agent, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association. The Hospitals’ Remarketing Agents,
Memill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (Series 2001A) and
Banc of America Securities LLC (Series 2001B) have agreed to exercise
their best efforts to remarket bonds for which a notice of purchase has
been received. The quarterly remarketing fee is payable in arrears and is
equal to 0.05% of the outstanding principal amount of the bonds assigned
to cach agent.

Under separate Standby Bond Purchase Agreements for the Series 2001A
and Series 20018 (Agreements) between the Hospitals and Landesbank
Hessen-Thuringen Girozentrale, a Liquidity Facility has been established
for the Tender Agent to draw amounts sufficient to pay the purchase price
and accrued interest on bonds delivered for purchase when remarketing
proceeds or other funds are not available. These Agreements require an
adjustable facility fee based on the long-term rating of the bonds, which is
calculated as a percentage of the available commitment. Payments are
made quarterly in arrears, on the first business day of each July, October,
January, and April thereafter until the expiration date or the termination
date of the Agreements, For the fiscal year, the percentage was 0.25%
with the long-term agrecment that became effective on July 11, 2005.
This agreement has been extended Lo October 11, 2014,

Under the Apreements, any bonds purchased through the Liquidity
Facility become Bank Bonds and shall, from the date of such purchase
and while they are Bank Bonds, bear interest at the Formula Rate (Base
Rate equal to the higher of the Prime Rate for such day or the sum of
0.50% plus the Federal Funds Rate) subject to a maximum rate as
permitted by law. Upon remarketing of Bank Bonds and the receipt of the
sales price by the Liguidity Provider, such bonds are no longer considered
Bank Bonds. Payment of the interest on the Bank Bonds is due quarterly
(the first business day of January, April, July, and October) for each
period in which Bank Bonds are outstanding. At June 30, 2011, there
were no Bank Bonds held by the Liquidity Facility.

Included in the Agreements is a take oul provision, in casc the
Remarketing Agent is unable to resell any bonds that are “put” within
90 days of the “put” date. In this situation, the Hospitals is required to
redeem the Bank Bonds held by the Liquidity Facility, The Agreements
allow the Hospitals to redeem Bank Bonds in equal quarterly installments,
on the first business day of January, April, July, and Ociober, The
payments will commence with the first business day of any such month
that is at least 90 days following the applicable Purchase Date of the Bank
Bond and end no later than the fifth anniversary of such Purchase Date, If
they take out agreement were to be exercised because the entire
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outstending $98,200,000 of demand bonds was “put” and not resold, the
Hospitals would be required to pay $21,358,456 a year for five years
under the installment loan agreement assuming a 3.25% prime interest
rate,

The current expiration date of the Agreements is December 31, 2015.
The Liquidity Provider has the option to terminate its commitment on
October 11, 2014 by providing adequate notice of its intention, The
Hospitals may request additional extensions of at least one year from the
previous termination date. Extensions are at the discretion of the
Liquidity Provider.

University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill
Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2003A and Series 2003B: On
February 13, 2003, the Hospitals issued two series of tax-exempt variable
rate demand bonds in the amount of $63,770,000 (2003A) and
$34,245,000 (2003B) that have a final maturity date of February 1, 2029,
The bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption that began
on February 1, 2004. The proceeds were used to advance refund of
$88,325,000 of the Series 1996 Bonds. While initially bearing interest in
a weekly mode, the mode on these bonds may change to 8 daily rate, &
unit pricing rate, a term rate, or a fixed rate.

While in the weekly mode, the bonds are subject to purchase on demand
with seven days notice to the Remarketing Agent and delivery to the bond
Tender Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. The Hospitals®
Remarketing Agents, Banc of America Securitics LLC (Series 2003A)
and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, (Series 2003B) have agreed to exercise their
best efforts to remarket bonds for which a notice of purchase has been
received. The quarterly remarketing fee is payable in arrears and is equal
to (.08% of the outstanding principal amount of the bonds assigned to the
Remarketing Agent for Series 2003A and is equal to 0.07% of the
outstanding principal amount of the bonds assigned to the Remarketing
Agent for Series 2003B.

Under separate Standby Bond Purchase Agreements for the Series 2003A
and Series 2003B (Agreements) between the Hospitals and Bank of
America, N.A, {Series 2003A) and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association (Series 2003B) Liquidity Facilities have been established for
the Tender Agent to draw amounts sufficient to pay the purchase price on
bonds delivered for purchase when remarketing proceeds or other funds
are not available,

The 2003A Agreement with Bank of America, National Association was
amended on June 9, 2010, and requires a facility fee equal to 0.58% of the
available commitment for Series 2003A payable quarterly in arrears,
beginning on August 1, 2010, and on each November 1, February 1,
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May 1, and August . On May 31, 2011, the facility fee was amended to
be 0.51% per annum effective July 1, 2011 until July 1, 2013. The
facility fee remains in effect over the life of the Agreement so long as the
rating assigned to Parity Debt by Moody's and S&P is AV/A+ or higher.
If the rating assigned to Parity Debt by cither Moody's or S&P is
downgraded below Al or A+, respectively, the Commitment Rate
assigned as of the public announcement of the rating:

S&P Moody's Comnsitment Rate
A A2 0.71%
A- ar lower A3 or lower 0.81%

Under the 2003A Agreement, any bonds purchased through the Liquidity
Facility become Bank Bonds and shall, from the date of such purchase
and while they are Bank Bonds, bear interest at the Bank Bond Interest
Rate equal 1o the greater of the Prime Rate plus 1.50% or the Federal
Funds Rate plus 3.00%, the Base Rate, for the first 90 days and then the
Base Rate plus 0.50% from the 91st day to the 367th day following the
date of purchase and the Base Rate plus 1.00% from the 368th day
following such date of purchase and thercafier subject to a maximum rate
as permitied by law. Upon remarketing of Bank Bonds and the receipt of
the sales price by the Liquidity Provider, such bonds are no longer
considered Bank Bonds, Payment of the interest on the Bank Bonds is on
the first business day of each calendar month following the date on which
such Bank Bond became & Bank Bond. At June 30, 2011, there were ne
Bank Bonds hetd by the 2003A Liquidity Facility.

Included in the 2003A Agreement is a take out provision, in case the
Remarketing Agent is unable to resell any bonds that are “put” within the
earlier of the termination date and 367 days of the “put” date. In this
situation, the Hospitals is required to redecm the Bank Bonds held by the
Liquidity Factlity. The Series 2003A Agreement aliows the Hospitals to
redeem bank bonds in six consecutive, equal semi-annual installments of
principal beginning on the first business day of the month that occurs at
least five and not more than six months following the termination date,
until fully paid. In any event, all principal and accrued and unpaid
interest shall be due and payable on the date the sixth installment is due.
If the take out agreement were to be exercised because the entire
outstanding $61,175,000 of demand bonds was “put” and not resold, the
Hospitals would be tequired to pay $23,259,247, 322,443,577, and
$21,271,057 in years one, two, and three respectively following the
termination date under the installment loan agreement assuming a Base
Rate of 4.75% (Prime plus 1.50%).

The 2003B Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
required a facility fee of 0.60% for fiscal year 2011, This agreement was
amended on June 30, 2011 and the facility fee was set to 0.50% of the
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available commitment payable quarterly in arrears, beginning on
November 1, 2011, and on each February 1, May 1, August 1, and
November 1 thereafter until July 31, 2013. The facility fee remains in
effect over the life of the Agreement so long as the rating assigned to
Parity Debt by S&P and Moody’s is A+/Al or higher. If the rating
assigned to Parity Debt by their S&P or Moody's is downgraded below
A+ or Al, respectively, the Hospitals' adjusted Commitment Rate (Jowest
rating to be used) assigned to such lower rating as set forth below shall
apply, effective as of the public announcement of the rating:

S&P Moody's Commitment Rete
A Al 0.65%
As Al 0.R0%
BER Baal 1.00%
BBB+ Beal 1.25%
BBB- Bral 1.55%
Below Investment Grade  Below Luvestient Grade 2.55%

Under the 2003B Agreement, any bonds purchased through the Liquidity
Facility becom¢ Bank Bonds and shall, from the date of such purchase
and while they are Bank Bonds, bear interest at the Bank Bond Interest
Rate equal to the greater of the Prime rate pius 1.00%, the Federal Funds
Rate plus 2.00% or 7.00%, the Base Rate, plus 2.00% subject 1o a
maximum ratc as permitted by law. Upon remarketing of Bank Bonds
and the receipt of the sales price by the Liquidity Provider, such bonds are
no longer considered Bank Bonds. At June 30, 2011, there were no Bank
Bonds held by the 2003B Liguidity Facility.

Included in the 2003B Agreement is a take out provision, in case the
Remarketing Agent is unable to resell any bonds that are “put” by the
termination date. In this situation, the Hospitals is required to redeem the
Bank Bonds held by the Liquidity Facility. The Series 2003B Agreement
allows the Hospitals to redeem bank bonds in 1] equal quarterly
installments of principal, on the first business day of each February, May,
August, and November, begitming on the first of such dates that occurs at
least 90 days after the Purchase Date of such Bank Bonds. The Hospitals
shall pay interest in arrears on cach date that would be an Interest
Payment Date for the Series 2003B Bonds, beginning on the first Interest
Payment Date that occurs after the Loan Date. If the take out agreement
were to be exercised because the entire outstanding $32,880,000 of
demand bonds was “put” and not resold, the Hospitals would be required
to pay $11,029,747, $13,861,908, and $12,718,583 in years one, two, and
three respectively following the Purchase Date of the Bank Bonds
agsuming a Base Rate of 7.00%.

University of North Carolina Hespitals at Chapel Hill Revenue
Refunding Bonds - Serfes 2009A: On Febmuary 12, 2009, the Hospitals
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issued Series 2009A tax-cxempt variable rate demand bonds in the
amount of $44,290,000 that have a final maturity date of
February 1, 2024, The bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption that began on February 1, 2010. The proceeds were used to
advance refund $43,505,000 of the Series 1999 Bonds. While initially
bearing interest in a weekly mode, the mode on these bonds may change
to a daily rate, a unit pricing rate, a term rate, or a fixed rate.

While in the weekly mode, the bonds are subject to purchase on demand
upon delivering irrevocable written notice of tender or imevocable
telephonic notice of tender to the Remarketing Agent not later than
4:00 p.m. on a Business Day not less than scven (7) days before the
Purchase Date and upen delivering such Series 2009A bonds to the bond
Tendet Agent, U.S. Bank, National Association, no later than noon on
such Purchase Date. The Hospitals’ Remarketing Agents, Banc of
Ametrica Securitics LLC has agreed to exercise their best efforts to
remarket bonds for which a notice of purchase has been received. The
quarterly remarketing fee is payable in arrears and is equal to 0.09% of
the weighted average daily principal amount of Series 20(09A Bonds
outstanding during such periods in which the Series 2009A bonds arc
Variable Rate Bonds.

Under a separate Liquidity Agreement with the Trustee, the Hospitals has
established itself as Liquidity Facility for the Tender Agent to dmw
amounts sufficient to pay the purchase price on bonds delivered for
purchase when remarketing proceeds or other funds are not available,
Upon receipt of any notice from the Remarketing Agent that there is a
Projected Funding Amount on the Business Day prior to each Purchase
Date or Mandatory Purchase Date, and upon receipt of written demand for
payment from the Tender Agent by noon on each Purchase Date or
Mandatory Purchase Date, the Hospitals shall wire to the Tender Agent,
in immediately available funds, an amount equal to the Actual Funding
Amount, which shall be equal to the Purchase Price of all Series 2009A
bonds tendered or deemed fendered, less the aggregate amount of
remarketing proceeds received by the Remarketing Agent, by not later
than 2:00 p.m. on the Purchase Date or Mandatory Purchase Daie.
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D. Annual Requirements - The annual requirements to pay principal and
interest on the long-term obligations at June 30, 201 § arc as follows:

Anmual Requinements

Revenus Bonds Notes Py

Inferest Rat

Fiscal Yoar Principal Imtorent Swaps, Net __ Principat  lmerest

2012 § 9700006 5 4065090 5 4278225 § 1380447 5 14467
2013 10,235,000 3,798,138 4,165,808
2014 10,625,000 3508348 4,067,414
2015 11,010,000 1203219 3,960,130
2016 11,735,000 1,019,441 3,798,137
2017-2021 65,170,000 12618979 14,865,105
20222026 79,230,000 10,348,536 7,275,626
2027-2031 JBINS00 4667946 1,224,756

Towl Reguiremens 5 296,020,000 5 4_5&29&‘1 - 43i635£| 3 li380447 5 14,467

Toereat on the variable rate 2001 ALB, 2003 A&B, and 2009A revenue bonds is calculaied at 0.20%, 0.21%,
0.28%, 0.24%, and 0.22% effective June 3, 2011,

This scheduls also includss the debt service requirements for debt associated with intercst rite swaps,
Synthetic interest on the variable ratg 2003A, 20038, and 2009A revesus bonds is calculwted based upon the
synuhetic rae at June 30, 2011, of 3.42%, 3.43%, and 3.54%, respectively. More detailed information ubeut
interest rate swapa is presented in Note 7 Derivative Instruments.

E. Notes Payable - The Hospitals was indebted for notes payable for the

purpose shown in the following table:
' il - - Prnc
Finseacial I Matarity pwopt  Palfhogh  Outending
Pupose Intytion Range [ oflme kot 32010 Jue 3, 2011
Madical Equipramt BM LEMII% 0G00I § TTMSE 5 1316 § LI0MT
NOTE7 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Detivative instruments held at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Chong: in Fair Vabhue Fat Valoe a1 June 30 2011
Noional
Type Amararrd Claseith Incycanc Claskification Lisbility
“Hadging Darfociive Inrruments
Carsh Flow Hevlges
Puy-Fixed uieeoet Ruio Deferved uaflow of Hedging Derivative
Swap 2000 A & B Bomchy $ 94055000  Rewnurotd $ 2214727  Lisbility £ (11,359372)
Pay-Fixod fuicrest Ratc Defirmed Ovatlow of Hadging Derivative
Swap 20054 Bors T 39705000 Reouce 770,401  Lishility {4.462,146)
$ 298,128 5 (15821.518)
— —
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Hedging derivative instraments held at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Notional Effoctive  Maturity

Type Objective Amount Dave Dt Term
Pay-Fixed Interest Rate  Hodge of Changos in Cash on Fay 14d%
Swap 2000 AAB Serice Bonds § 54055000 OVIN200) 0201201 Reodve 6T%

LIBOR
PrxFined Interen Rate Hedge of Chapes in Ceth o Pay 1.61%
Swap tho J009A Sctics Bods $ 39705000 G1272009 (2012014  Receive 6T%

LIBOR

The fair vatue of the pay-fixed interest ratc swaps was estimated by Bank of
Americe, National Association (BOA) using the zero coupon method. This
method calculates the present value of the future net seitlement payments
required by the swap assuming that the current forward rates implied by the
yield curve comectly anticipate future spot interest rates. These payments are
then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) due on the date of each future net
settlement on the swap.

The Hospitals® interest rate swap hedging derivatives have been determined to
be effective using the synthetic instrument method.

Hedging Derivative Risks

Credit Risk: As of June 30, 2011, the Hospitals is not exposed to credit risk
because the swaps have a negative fair value. However, should interest rates
change and the fair value of the swaps become positive, the Hospitals would be
exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivatives’ fair value. The
Hospitals has a policy of requiring collateral to support hedging derivative
instruments subject to credit risk. This policy states that at such time that
BOA’s ratings fall below A3 for Moody's or below A- for S&P, BOA will be
required to collateralize a portion of their exposure {up to 100%). The
following instruments can serve as cligible collateral: Cash, U.S, Treasury
Obligations, U.S. Government Agency Fixed Rate Fixed Maturity Securities,
U.S. Government Agency Single Class Morigage-Backed Securities, U.S.
Treasury STRIPS, and other U.S. Government Agency Mortgege-Backed
Securities. Posted coliateral received will be entered in one or more accounts
with a domestic office of a commercial bank, trust company, or financial
institution organized under the laws of the United States {or any state or
political subdivision thereof). As of June 30, 2011, the credit rating for Bank
of America, N.A. i3 Aa3 by Moody’s and A+ by S&P.

The Hospitals entered into 2 master agreement with the International Swap
Dealers Association, Inc. (ISDA) in January 2003. In this agrcement, master
netting arrangements were established between the contractual parties. All
derivative instruments held by the Hospitals are subject to this agreement.
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NoTES

Interest Rate Risk: The Hospitals is exposed to inierest rate risk on its interest
rate swaps. The fair values of these instruments are sensitive to interest rate
changes. Because rates have changed since the effective dates of the swaps,
both of the swaps have a negative fair value as of June 30, 2011, The negative
fair value may be countered by a reduction in total interest payments required
under the variable-rate bonds, creating lower synthetic interest rates. Because
the coupons on the Hospitals® variable-rate bonds adjust to changing interest
rates, the bonds do not have corresponding fair value increases. As the yield
cutve rises, the value of the swaps will increase and as rates fall, the value of
the swaps will decrcase. The fair values reported are the market values as of
June 30, 2011,

Basis Risk: The Hospitals receives 67% of 1-month LIBOR-BBA Index from
BOA and pays a floating rate to its bondholders set by the Remarketing Agent.
The Hospitals incurs basis risk when its bonds trade at a yield above 67% of
1-month LIBOR-BBA Index. If the relationship of the Hospitals® bonds trade
to a percentage of LIBOR greater than 67%, the Hospitals will experience an
increase in debt service above the fixed rate on the swap.

Termination Risk: The Hospitals is exposed to termination risk because the
derivative contracts use the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, such as failure to pay
and bankruptcy, The Hospitals or the counterparty may torminate the swap if
the other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. 1f the swap is
terminated, the associated variable-rate bonds would no longer carry synthetic
interest rates, Also, if at the time of termination the swap has a negative fair
value, the Hospitals would be lisble to the counterparty for that amount
Termination could result in the Hospitals being required to make an
unanticipated termination payment.

OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The Hospitals entered into operating leases for space rental. Future mininmum

lease payments under noncancelable operating leases comsist of the following
at June 30, 2011:

Fiseal Year Amount
2012 H 2,550,852
20t3 2,394,048
2014 2,053,144
2015 1,474,086
2018 1,097,168
20£7-2021 1'234,138
Total Mininum Lease Paymoms 5§ 11,103,436

Rental expense for all operating leases during the year was $3,364,523,
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NOTE 9

NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE

Medicare: The Hospitals is reimbursed for inpatient acute care services under
the provisions of the Prospective Payment System (PPS). Under PPS, payment
is made at predelermined rates for treating various diagnoses and performing
procedures that have been grouped into defined Medicare Severity Diagnosis-
Related Groups (MSDRGs) applicable to each patient discharge, rather than on
the basis of the Hospitals" allowable charges. The difference in the standard
hospital charge and the prospective payment for such services is reflected as an
adjustment from patient service revenue. The claims payments are MSDRG
payments, including capital related costs and add-on payments for indirect
medical education and disproportionate share.

Medicare makes payments for Direct Graduate Medical Education (DGME) in
support of the direct costs of residency training. Medicare also pays a portion
of Medicare bad debts and organ acquisition costs for the Medicare
beneficiaries. These pass-through payments are discussed further in Note 4,
Estimated Third Party Settlements.

Medicare reimburses the Hospitals for inpatient hospital services furnished in
the inpatient rehabilitation unit, referred to as an inpatient rehabilitation facility
(IRF), under the provisions of the Inpatient Rehabilitation Facility Prospective
Payment System (IRF PPS).

Medicare reimburses the Hospitals for services famnished in the inpatient
psychiatric unit under the provisions of the Inpatient Psychiatric Facility
Prospective Payment System (IPF PPS),

With the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, most cutpatient services are paid on a
prospective payment system, The system became effective August 1, 2000,
and is based on ambulatory payment classifications (APC). It applies to most
hospital outpstient services other than ambulance, rchabilitation services,
clinical diagnostic laboratory scrvices, non-implantable durable medical
equipment, prosthetic devices, and orthotics which are paid based on fee
schedules.

Medicaid: Medicaid reimburses inpatient services on an interim basis under a
prospective payment system using diagnostic related proups as its basis.
Medicaid reimburses most outpatient services on an interim basis at an agreed-
upon rate based on documented costs. Medicaid also reimburses the Hospitals
for graduate medical education {GME) costs. A final settlement is made at
year end to adjust from the interim reimbursement to & cost-based
reimbursemnent based on the filed cost reports, Several services such as
hearing aids, durable medical equipment (DME), outpaticnt pharmaceuticals,
home health, and diagnostic laboratory services are paid on fee schedales and
not cost settled.
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Notel1¢ -

Medicaid reimburses the Hospitals for providing services to a disproportionate
share (DSH) of uninsured and low income patients. An amount equal to these
funds, $52,394,857 (excluding Basic DSH), is returned to the North Carolina
Department of Medical Assistance from appropriations, nonfederal revenue,
fund balances or other resources.

Commercial/Managed Care Payer Agreements: The Hospitals has entered
into reimbursement agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers and
managed care organizations to accept patients on a discounted fee for service
basis. The basis for reimbursement under these agreements includes case rates
per discharge, discounts from established charges, fee schedules, global
payments, and per diem rates. Globel rate reimbursements include the hospital
and physician component for solid organ transplant, bone marrow transplant,
and some cancer services.

In general, most payments for inpatient and outpatient services are subject to
deductibles and co-payments that are the patient’s responsibility. Additionally,
insurance plans may reimburse their subscribers or make direct payment to the
Hospitals on an assignment of benefits basis.

A summary of net patient service revenue for the year ended June 30, 2011
follows:

2011
Tnpetiont Rogting $ 441,634,503
Inpatient Ancl lary R2E,512,614
Oupaien 990,751,174
Charity Care Provided {133,844,10%)
Prior Year Third Party Serdemends 15,100,359
Grogs Patlert Service Ravesus 2,141, 181.656
Maodicare Contracinal Allowance {422,656,144)
Madicaid Contractual Alovanc (27621,82)
Mamged Owre Coniractun] Allowanis (314,996, T36)
Other Coutractum| Allowwnces (3L,42,682)
Bnd Dbt (66.0358,500)
Comtractun| Adjustoents _(1,114,396,154)
Net Paticut Service Reveont $  1.027,785,%2

PENSION PLANS

A. Retirement Plans - Each permanent full-time employec, as a condition of
employment, is a member of the Teachers’ and State Employees’
Retirement System.

The Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established by the State to
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provide pension benefits for employees of the State, its component units,
and local boards of education. The Plan is administered by the North
Carolina State Treasurer.

Benefit and contribution provisions for the Teachers’ and State
Employees’ Retirement System are established by North Carolina
General Statutes 135-5 and 135-8 and may be amended only by the North
Carolina General Assembly. Employer and member contribution rates are
set each year by the North Carolina General Assembly based on amual
actuarial valuations. For the year ended June 30, 2011, these rates were
set at 4.93% of covered payroll for employers and 6% of covered payroll
for members.

For the cument fiscal year, the Hospitals had a total payroll of
$419,040,595, of which $352,650,324 was covered under the Teachers’
and State Employees’ Retirement System. Total employer and employee
contributions for pension benefits for the year were $17,385,661 and
$21,159,019, respectively.

Required employer contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2010
and 2009, werc 3.57% and 3.36%, respectively, while employee
contributions were 6% each year, The Hospitals made 100% of its annual
required contributions for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009,
which were $17,385,661, $11,821,316, and $10,453,508, respectively.

The Teachers' and State Employees’ Retirement System’s financial
information is included in the State of North Carolina’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report. An electronic version of this report is available
by accessing the Notth Carolina Office of the State Controller’s Internet
home page hitp://www.oscnc gov/ and clicking on “Proceed directly to
0SC’s index page,” then “Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s
Financiel Reporting Section at {919} 981-5454.

B. Deferred Compensation and Supplemental Retirement Income
Plans - [RC Section 457 Plan - The State of North Carolina offers its
permanent employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457 through the North Carolina
Public Employee Deferred Compensation Plan (the Plan). The Plan
permits each participating employee to defer a portion of his or her salary
until foture years. The deferred compensation is available to employees
upon scparation from service, death, disability, retirement, or financial
hardships if approved by the Board of Trustees of the Plan. The Board, 2
part of the North Carolina Department of Administration, maintains a
separate fund for the exclusive benefit of the participating employees and
their beneficiaries, the North Carolina Public Employee Deferved
Compensation Trust Fund. The Board also contracts with an external
third party to perform certain administrative requirements and to manage
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the trust fund’s assets. All costs of administering and funding the Plan are
the responsibility of the Plan participants. No costs are incurred by the
Hospitals. The voluntary contributions by employees amounted to
$752,594 for the year ended June 30, 2011.

IRC Section 401{k} Plan - All members of the Teachers” and State
Employees’ Retirement System are cligible to enroll in the Supplemental
Retitement Ingome Plan, a defined contribution plan, created under
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k). All costs of administering the
Plan are the responsibility of the Plan participants. No costs are incurred
by the Hospitals except for a 5% employer contribution for the Hospitals'
law enforcement officers, which is mandated under General
Statate 143-166.30(c). Total employer contributions on behalf of
Hospitals® law enforcement officers for the year ended June 30, 2011,
were $59,765, The voluntary contributions by employees amounted to
$2,741,220 for the year ended June 30, 2011,

IRC Section 403(b) and 403(b)(7) Plans - Eligible Hospilals employees
cen participate I lax sheltered annuity plans created under Internal
Revenue Code Sections 403(b) and 403(b)(7). The employee's eligible
contributions, made through salary reduction agreements, are exempt
from federal and State income taxes until the annuity is received or the
contributions are withdrawn, These plans are exclusively for employees
of universities and certain charitable and other nonprofit institutions. All
costs of administering and funding these plans are the responsibility of the
Plan participants. No costs are incurred by the Hospitals. The voluntary
contributions by employees amounted to $3,693,226 for the year ended
June 30, 2011.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

By General Statute, a Retiree Health Benefit Fund (the Fund) has been
established as a fund in which accumulated centributions from employers
and any eamings on those contributions shall be used to provide health
benefits to retired and disabled employees and applicable beneficiaries.
By statute, the Fund is administered by the Board of Trustees of the
Teachers' and State Employees” Retirement System and contributions to
the Fund are imevocable. Also by law, Fund assets are dedicated to
providing benefits to retired and disabled employees and applicable
beneficiaries and are not subject to the claims of creditors of the
employers making contributions to the Fund. Coniribution rates to the
Fund, which are intended to finance benefits and administrative expenses
on a pay-as-you-go basis, are determined by the General Assembly.

For the current fiscal year the Hospitals coninbuted 4.9% of the covered
payroll under the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System to
the Fund. Required contribution retes for the years ended June 30, 2010,
and 2009, were 4.5% and 4.1%, respectively. The Hospitals made 100%
of its annual required contributions to the Plan for the years ended
June 3¢, 2011, 2010, and 2009, which were $17,279,866, $14,900,818,
and $12,755,768, respectively, The Hospitals assumes no liability for
retiree health care benefits provided by the programs other than its
required contribution.

Additional detailed information about these programs can be located in
the State of North Carolina’s Comprehensive A ! Financial Report.
An electronic version of this report is available by accessing the North
Carolina Office of the State Controller’s Internet home page
hitp:/Arww.osc.nc.gov/ and clicking on *Proceed directly to OSC's index
page,” then “Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s Financial

Reporting Section at (919) 981-5454.
NoTE1ll - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
B. Disability Income - The Hospitals participates in the Disability Income

A. Health Benefits - The Hospitals participates in the Comprehensive Major Plan of North Carolina (DIPNC), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer

Medical Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
health care plan that provides postemployment health insurance to eligible
former employees,  Eligible former employees include long-term
disability beneficiaries of the Disability Income Plan of North Carolina
and retirees of the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System.
Coverage cligibility varies depending on years of contributory
membership service in their retirement system prior to disability or
Tetirement.

The Plan’s benefit and contribution provisions are established by North
Carolina General Statute 135-7 and Chepter 135, Article 3A, of the
General Statutes and may be amended only by the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement
benefit increases.
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defined benefit plan, to provide short-term and long-term disability
benefits to eligible members of the Teachers” and State Employecs’
Retirement System, Benefit and contribution provisions are established
by Chapter 135, Article 6, of the General Statutes, and may be amended
only by the North Carplina General Assembly, The Plan docs not provide
for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.

Disability income benefits are funded by actuarially determined employer
contributions that are established by the General Assembly. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, the Hospitals made a statutory contribution
of 0.52% of covered payroll under the Teachers’ and State Employees’
Retirement System to the DIPNC. Required contribution rates for the
years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 were 0.52% and 0.52%, respectively.
The Hospitals made 100% of its annusl required contributions to the
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NoTE12 -

DIPNC for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, which were
$1,833,782, $1,721,872, and $1,617,805, respectively. The Hospitals
assumes no liability for long-ter disability benefits under the Plan other
than its contribution.

Additional detailed information about the DIPNC is disclosed in the State
of North Carolina’s Comprehensive Anmial Financial Report.

RiSK MANAGEMENT

The Hospitals is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to
employees; and natural disasters. These exposures to loss are handled via a
combination of methods, including participation in State-administered
insurance programs, purchase of commercial insurance, and self-retention of
certain risks. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage
from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of
the past three fiscal years.

Ton claims of up to $1,000,000 arc retained under the authority of the State
Tort Claims Act.

The Hospitals is required to maintain fire and lightning coverage on all State-
owned buildings and contents through the State Property Fire Insurance Fund
(Fund), an internal service fund of the Stats. Premiums arc paid based on
square footage and the value of building contents, The Hospitals purchased
through the Fund “all risks” replacement cost basis insurance for buildings and
contents subject to a $25,000 per occurrence deductible.

All State-owned vehicles are covered by liability insurance through a private
insurance compeny and bandled by the North Carolina Department of
Insurance. The liability limits for losses are $1,000,000 per claim and
$10,000,000 per occurrence. The Hospitals pays premiums to the North
Carolina Department of Insurance for the coverage. The Hospitals also has an
insurance policy from a private insurance company through the North Carolina
Department of Insurance for Auto Physical Damage (for vehicles costing
greater than $75,000). Coverage limit is $5,000,000 per accident with a
deductible of $500 per occurrence.

The Hospitals is protected for losses from employee dishonesty and computer
fraud. This coverage is with a private insurance company and is handled by
the North Carolina Department of Insurance. The Hospitals is charged a
premium by the privaie insurance company. Coverage limit is $5,000,000 per
occurrence.  The private insurance company pays 90% of cach loss less a
$75,000 deductible.
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The Hospitals purchased other authorized coverage from private insurance
companies through the North Carolina Department of Insurance. The coverage
includes:

» Boiler and Machinery insurance up to $25,000,000 with a deductible of
$5,000;

» Directors and Officers Liability insurance up to $25,000,00¢ with a
deductible of $350,000 per occurrence for anti-trust claims and $200,000
per occurrence for all other claims;

s Master Crime insurance up to $500,000 with a deductible of $1,000;

+ Comprehensive General Liability insurance wp to $2,000,000 with a
deductible of $10,000 per occurrence and Umbrella Excess insurance with
limits of $5,000,000 per occurrence and aggregate;

» General Liability for Helipad on Premises insurance up to $20,000,000
with a deductible of $10,000 per aircraft;

* General Liability for Non-owned Aircraft insurance up to $20,000,000 per
occurrence with no deductible;

» Computerized Busincss Equipment replacement cost insurance up to
$761,108 with a deductible up to $10,000 per occurrence;

¢ Fine Ars Floater insurance up to $5,000 per item and $100,000 policy
aggregate, with a deductible of 1,000 per occurrence;

+ Surety Bond of $150,000 for Suppliers of Durable Medical Equipment,
Prosthetics, Orthotics, and Supplies Medicare Program (DMEPOS).

Hospitals employees and retirees are provided comprehensive major medical
care benefits, Coverage is funded by contributions to the State Health Plan
(Plan), a discretely presented component unit of the State of North Carolina.
The Plan has contracted with third parties to process claims.

The North Carolina Workers' Compensation Program provides benefits to
workers injured on the job. All employees of the State and its component units
are included in the program. When an employee is injured, the Hospitals’
primary rcsponsibility is to arrange for and provide the necessary treatment for
work related injury. The Hospitals is responsible for paying medical benefits
and compensation in accordance with the North Carolina Workers’
Compensation Act. The Hospitals retains the risk for workers’ compensation.

Term life insurance (death benefits) of $25,000 to $50,000 is provided to
eligible workers. This Death Benefit Plan is administered by the State
Treasurer and funded via employer contributions. The employer contribution
rate was 0.16% for the current fiscal year,
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Additional details on the State-administered risk management programs are
disclosed in the State’s Comprehensive A ! Fi ial Report, issued by the
Office of the State Controller.

Liability Insurance Trust Fund - The Hospitals participates in the Liability
Insurance Trust Fund (Trust Fund), a claims-servicing public entity risk pool
for healthcare professional liability protection. The Trust Fund services
professional liability claims, managing separate accounts for each participant
from which the losses of that participant are paid. Adthough participant
assessments are determined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for claims
remains with the participants and, accordingly, the insurance risks are not
transferred to the Trust Fund.

The Trust Fund is an unincorporated entity created by Chapter 116, Article 26,
of the North Carolina General Statutes and The University of North Carolina
Board of Govetnors Resolution of June 9, 1978. The Trust Fund is a self-
insurance program cstablished to provide professional medical malpractice
liability covering the Hospitals and The University of North Carolina at Chapel
Hilt Physicians and Associates {UNC P&A), the program perticipants, The
Trust Fund provides coverage for program participants and individual health
care practitioners working as cmployees, agents, or officers of program
participants. The Trust Fund is exempt from federal and state income taxes,
and is not subject to regulation by the North Carolina Department of Insurance.

Participation in the Trust Fund is open to the University of North Carolina, any
constituent institution of the University of North Carolina, the Hospitals, and
any health care institution, agency or entity that has an affiliation agreement
with the University of North Carolina, with a constituent institution of the
University of North Carolina, or with the Hospitals. Only the UNC P&A and
the Hospitals have participated in the Trust Fund to date. Participants provide
management and administrative services to the Trust Fund at no cost.

The Trust Fund is governed by the Liability Insurance Trust Fund Council {the
Council). The Council consists of 13 members as follows: one member each
appointed by the State Attorney Genernl, the State Insurance Commissioner,
the Director of the Office of State Budget and Management, and the State
Treasurer, (each serving at the pleasure of the appointer); and nine members
appointed by the UNC System’s Board of Governors,

The Trust Fund establishes claim liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate
cost of claims {(including future expenses and claim adjustment expenses) that
have been reported but not seitled and of claims incurred but not reported.
Claim liabilities are recomputed annually based on an independent actuary’s
study to produce current estimates that reflect recent scttlements, claims
frequency, inflation and other factors. Participant assessments are determined
at a level to fund claim liabilitics, discounted for future investment earnings,
Fach participant is required by statute to maintain a fund balance of $100,000
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at all times, Participants are subject to additional premium assessments in the
event of deficiencies.

For the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, the Trust Fund provided
coverage on an occurrence basis of $3,000,000 per individual and $7,000,000
in the aggregate per claim. The Trust Fund entered into an excess of loss
agreement with an umaffiliated reinsurer in prior years. However, excess
reinsurance coverage has mot been purchased for any policy year since
June 30, 2006, as the Trust Fund chose to retain 100% of the liability. In licu
of reinsurence, the participants contributed $10,000,000 in the aggregate
toward the Reimbursement Fund for future losses during fiscal year 2007, In
addition, during fiscal year 2010, the participants contributed an additional
$1,006,106 to replenish the Reimbursement Fund to its original $106,000,000
level. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the Trust Fund purchased a
direct insurance policy to cover the first $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$3,000,000 in the aggregate for dental residents. North Carclina General
Statutes Chapter 116 was amended during 1987 to authorize the Trust Fund to
borrow necessary amounts up to $30,000,000, in the event that the Trust Fund
may have insufficient funds to pay existing and future claims. Any such
borrowing would be repaid from the assets and revenues of program
participants, No line of credit or borrowing has been established pursuant to
this authorization. The Council believes adequate funds are on depoesit in the
Trust Fund to meet estitnated fosses based upon the results of the independent

actuary’s report.

The Trust Fund has purchased annuity contracts to seitle claims for which the
claimant has signed an agreement releasing the Trust Fund from further
obligation. The related claim liabilities have been removed from estimated
malpractice costs,

The Council may choose to terminate the Trust Fund, or the respective
participants may choose to terminate their participation. In the event of such
termination by either the Council or a participant, an updated actuarial study
will be performed to determine amounts due to or from the participants based
on loss experience up to the date of termination.

At June 30, 2011, the Hospitals’ assets in the Trust Fund totaled $28,597,397
while Hospitals' liabilitics totaled $25,278,388 resulting in net assets of
$3,319,009.

Additional disclosures relative to the funding status and obligations of the
Trust Fund are set forth in the andited financial statements of the Liability
Insurance Trust Fund. Copies of this report may be obtained from The
University of North Carolina Liability Insurance Trust Fund, University of
North Carolina Health Care System, 211 Friday Cenmter Drive, Hedrick
Building, Room 2029, Chapel Hill, North Carolina 27517.
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NotEl3 -

NotE14 -

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A, Commitments - The Hospitals has established an encumbrance system to
track its outstanding commitments on comstruction projects and other
purchascs. Cutstanding commitments on construction contracts were
$29,200,140 and on other purchases were $30,613,458 at June 30, 2011,

B. Pending Litigation and Claims - The Hospitals is a party to other
litigation and claims in the ordinary course of its operations. Since it is
not possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these matters, no provision
for any liability has been made in the financial statements. Hospitals
management is of the opinion that the liability, if any, for any of these
matters will not bave a material adverse effect on the financial position of
the Hospitals.

RELATED PARTIES

University of North Carolina Health Care System Enterprise Fuad - The
Boand of Directors of UNC Health Care Systemn (System) authorized and
approved the creation of an Enterprise Fund to support the System’s mission
and vision to be the nation’s leading public academic health care system, The
key components of the System contributing to the Enterprise Fund during
fiscal year 2011 are the University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill,
the clinical patient care programs established or maintained by the University
of North Carolina at Chapel Hill School of Medicine, UNC Physicians &
Associates, and Rex Healthcare, Inc. Recognizing the ongoing need for
funding this mission, the key components agreed to finance the Enterprise
Fund pursuant to a memorandum of understanding effective July 1, 2065. The
Hospitals was assessed $42,119,739 to fund initiatives supporied by the
Enterprise Fund for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Periodically, the Enterprise Fund has made payments to support the missions
of the UNC School of Medicine (SOM) and to further enhance the reputation
of the System. These funds help the SOM achieve its missions in education,
research, clinical care and recruitment as well as support for administrative
expenses. The Hospitals was initially issued a special assessment of
$8,000,000 during fiscal year 2011 to assist in the support of the SOM, as has
occurred in previous years, and was subsequently assessed another
$20,000,000 after the severity of budget cuts to the SOM and the System were
fulty realized.

The System is the sole member (owner) of Chatham Hospital, Inc. and
Triangle Physician Network, LIC. The Hospitals was assessed a total of
$10,517,876 to support the operations of these enmtilies, $5,500,000 and
$5,017,876 respectively, during the course of the fiscal year.
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Rex Healthcare, In¢, - Rex Healthcare, Inc. (Rex) is a not-for-profit
corporation and is exemnpt from federal and North Carolina income taxation as
a 501({cK3) charitable organization, Rex does not conduct active operations
but serves as the parent corporation for a multi-entity health care delivery
system that was organized to provide a wide range of health care services to
the residents of Wake County, North Carelina and surrounding counties. The
Systern acquired Rex in 2000 and is the sole member of the corporation. The
System appoints eight of the 13 seats on Rex’s Board of Trustees and also
reviews and approves Rex's anmual operating and cepital budgets. The
principal corporate entities under the commeon control of Rex are:

Rex Hospital, Inc. - Rex Hospital, Inc. is a 433-bed hospital located in
Raleigh, North Carolina that provides inpatient, outpatient, and
emergency services primarily to the residents of Wake County. The
Hospital operates Rex Cancer Center, Rex Women’s Center, and Rex
Rehab and Nursing Care Center of Raleigh on its main campus. Rex
Hospital has additional campuses in Cary, Wakefield (in Ralcigh),
Knightdale, and Apex. Rex Hospital, Inc. also owns Rex Home Services,
Inc. that primarily serves residents of Wake County and Smithficid
Radiation Oncology, LLC.

Rex Enterprises Company, Inc, - Rex Enterprises Company, Inc. is a
North Carolina for-profit corporation organized to hold investments in
various affiliates and to promote the develepment of real property in
support of the mission of Rex. Rex Enterprises Company, Inc. is the sole
member of Rex CDP Ventures, LLC, which is a limited liability company
organized to own and develop real estate in the Wakeficld community of
notthern Wake County.

Rex Healthcare Foundation, Inc. - Rex Healthcare Foundation, Inc. is a
North Carolina not-for-profit corporation organized to promote the health
and welfare of residents in Rex’s service area by promoting philanthropic
contributions and public support of Rex.

Rex Holdings, LLC - Rex Holdings, LLC was formed in 2007 to provide
medical services through wvarious affiliations, joint ventures, and
independent physician practices. Rex Holdings is the sole member of Rex
Physicians, LLC, which was established in 2009 to employ physicians of
specialty practices.

The Hospitals provides certain management, legal, and contracting services o
Rex. Likewise, Rex also provides certain employee contracting services to the
Hospitels. These transactions resulted in the Hospitals receiving $2,170,401
from Rex and the Hespitals paying $743,723 to Rex during the year ended
June 30, 2011.

The Medical Foundation of North Carolina, Inc. - The Hospitals is &
participant in The Medical Foundation of North Carolina, Inc. (Foundation), a
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nonprofit Foundation for the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and
the Hospitals, which solicits gifts and grants for both entities. The Board of
Directors of the Medical Foundation administers the funds of the Foundation.

Chatham Hospital, Inc. - Chatham Hospital, Inc. is & private, nonprofit
501{cX3) corporation that owns and operates a 25-bed critical access facility
located in Siler City, North Carolina. The facility operates 21 acute/swing
beds and four intensive care beds, along with a complement of surgical suites,
emergency room, and ancillary services.

The Hospitals entered into a five year management agreement with Chatham
Hospital, Inc. on August 1, 2006, which includes executive staffing and
assistance with operations and planning, Additienally, the Hospitals entered
into various other administrative and clinical services agreements with
Chatham Hospital, Inc. and was paid $1,778,228 during the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2011 for those services.

By contractual agreement, the System became the sole member of Chatham
Hospital, Inc. on July 1, 2008. The System appoints nine of the 15 members
on the Chatham Hospital, Inc. Board and reviews and approves its annual
operating and capital budgets.

The Hospitals had previously established a $1,999,000 escrow account to serve
as collateral for some of the financial covenants related to Chatham Hospital,
Inc. debt. On February 10, 2010, the Department of Housing and Urban
Development's Office of Insured Health Care Facilities approved the release of
the escrow funds for deposit into the Chatham Hospital, Inc. MOB (medical
office building) Construction Fund. According to the terms of the escrow
agreement, the $1,999,000 balance converted into a note payable to the
Hospitals effective upon the release of the escrow funds. The escrow funds
were released in December 2010 and Chatham Haospital, Inc. early retired the
entire outstanding note payable balance in March 2011,

Triangle Physician Network, LLC - Triangle Physician Network, LLC
(TPN) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the System, but a ptivate employer, that
owns and operates |7 community based practices throughout the Triangle
(Raleigh, Durham, and Chapel Hill), North Carolina area.

TPN is a physician-led netwerk structured to meet the needs of the community
and community practice physicians by creating a partnership for physicians
and the System to face the challenging health care environment. TPN
incorporates legacy System community-based practices as well as newly
acquired practices and is actively seeking affiliation with private practices
throughout the region.

The Hospitals provides purchasing, accounts payable, and accounting services
to TPN as wetl as supplies and bio-medical equipment services. TPN paid the
Hospitals $3,982,725 for supplics and services during fiscal year 2011,
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NOTE 15

First Health-UNC HCS, LLC - First Health-UINC HCS, LLC is a joint
venture between the System and First Health of the Carolinas, Inc., which was
created to purchase and operate Sanford Hematology & Cncology (SHO), a
clinic located in Sanford, North Carolina. Each entity has a 50% ownership
interest in SHO,

First Health-UNC HCS, LLC paid the Hospitals $2,294,912 for supplies and
bio-medical equipment services received during fiscal year 2011.

Henderson County Hospital Corporation d/b/a Margaret R. Pardee
Memorial Hospital (HCHC) - Henderson County is the sole member of
HCHC, a North Carolina not-for-profit corporation, which is in tum the sole
member of Henderson County Urgent Care Centers, Inc. and Western Carolina
Medical Associates, Inc. HCHC was created by Henderson County to provide
for the operation of a community hospital in Henderson County, North
Carolina that is dedicated to serving the health care needs of Henderson
County citizenry. These facilities include 20] licensed acute care beds,
21 licensed psychiatric beds, a physicians’ services group, a home health
agency, and an urgent care center which provide a variety of community-based
services,

On June 22, 2011, HCHC signed a management service agreement engaging
the Hospitals to conduct and effectively manage the day to day operations of
Margaret R. Pardee Memorial Hospital and HCHC's affiliated operations over
a term of 10 years. Additionally, the Chief Executive Officer of HCHC is an
employee of the System.

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

The Hospitals has investments in affiliates and joint ventures accounted for on
the equity method. Investrents in affiliates were $1,057,342 at June 30, 2011,
The Hospitals’ share of these affiliates and joint ventures is not significant
individually. The summarized financial information below represents an
aggregation of the ongeing affiliates and joint venthres:

P00
P .

TOTAL AFFILIATE ACTIVITY

Cutreit Auktts H L9482

Nooepereat Amels 399,004

Currest Liskeikition 13,568

Starchoker Fqwity 1805010

Reveane TM2AG)

Nt Gain 166445
HOEPITALS SHARE OF ACTEVITY

Realized Afiinte Gain - Orgotag Opentions £ 243551
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NotE16 -

NoTE17 -

CHANGES IN FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Hospitals implemented the
following proncuncements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB):

GASB Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus.
GASB Statement No. 59 updates the disclosure and reporting requirements for
certain financial instruments and external investment pools.

NET ASSET RESTATEMENT

As of July 1,2010, net assets as previously reported was restated as follows:

— Amoumt
July 1, 2010 Net Assets as Previously Reported L 995,662,216
Restatement: Correction of Distribution to Minority
Totereat in Caroling Dialysis, LLC (2,497,500)
July 1, 2010 Net Assets as Restated $ 993,164,716
————
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED N ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
University of North Carolina Health Care System
Chapel Hill, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of the University of North Carolina Hospitals at
Chapel Hill, which is a part of the multi-campus University of North Carolina System, a
component unit of the State of North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and
have issued our report thereon dated October 3, 2011.

As discussed in Note 16 to the financial statements, the Hospitals implemented Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus, during the
year ended June 30, 2011,

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements present only the
University of North Carolina Hospitals at Chapel Hill and are not intended to present fairly
the financial position of the University of North Carolina Health Care System nor the
University of North Carolina System, and the results of operations and cash flows in
conformity with accounting principles genetally accepted in the United States of America.

We conducted our sudit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained n
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal 1 Financial

In planning and performing our sudit, we considered the Hospitals’ internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Hospitals’ internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectivencss of the Hospitals® intemal
control over financial reporting.
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A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent, or detect and correct misstalements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is & reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Hospitals’ financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis,

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpese
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal controt over financial reporting thet might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies,
or material weaknesses. We did not identify amy deficiencics in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Othier Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Hospitals” financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tesis of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statenent amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an ebjective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of the Hospitals, the
Board of Governors, the Board of Directors of the University of North Carolina Health Care
System, the Audit and Compliance Commitice, others within the entity, the Governor, the
General Assembly, and the State Controller, and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

oo A vant

Beth A. Wood, CPA
State Auditor

October 3, 2011
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ORDERING INFORMATION

Andit reports issued by the Office of the State Auditor can be obtained from the web site at
www.ncauditor.net. Also, parties may register on the web site to receive automatic email
notification whenaver reports of interest are issued. Otherwise, copies of audit reports may be
obtained by contacting the:

Office of the State Auditor

State of North Carolina

2 South Salisbury Street

20601 Mail Service Center

Raleigh, North Carelina 27699-0601

Telephone:  919/807-7500
Facsimile:  919/807-7647
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